ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVMM TTEE
April 19, 2007
8:07 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representative Crai g Johnson
Represent ati ve Andrea Dol |
Representati ve Max G uenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 6
Proposi ng amendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to the office of attorney general.
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HIR 6

SHORT TI TLE. CONST. AM ELECTED ATTORNEY GENERAL
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) CRAWORD

01/ 25/ 07 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 25/ 07 (H) STA, JUD, FIN

03/ 15/ 07 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 15/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 15/ 07 (H) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 12/ 07 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 12/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 12/ 07 (H) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 19/ 07 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE HARRY CRAWORD
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 19, 2007



Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as prine sponsor of HIR 6.

CHARLES E. COLE, Attorney at Law

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: As fornmer attorney general, related the
pros and cons of elected versus appointed attorneys general
during the hearing on HIR 6.

BRUCE BOTHELO, Mayor

Cty & Bureau of Juneau

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testifying as a private citizen who served
as attorney general, offered information and answered questions
during the hearing on HIR 6.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
nmeeting to order at 8:07:12 AM Representatives Roses, Coghill,
Johansen, Johnson, Guenberg, Doll, and Lynn were present at the
call to order.

HIR 6-CONST. AM ELECTED ATTORNEY GENERAL

CHAI R LYNN announced that the only order of business was HOUSE
JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 6, Proposing anendnents to the Constitution
of the State of Alaska relating to the office of attorney
general .

8:07:50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HARRY CRAWORD, Alaska State Legislature, as
prime sponsor, nentioned the discussion regarding HIR 6 held
during the last hearing on the resolution. He reviewed that the
del egates of the Alaska Constitutional Convention chose to have
an appointed attorney general (AG in order to have a strong
executive branch with no discordance in the adm nistration. He
stated his belief that Alaska has grown up since then, tines
have changed, and the state does not need an executive that has
no checks or balances within the adm nistration. He opined that
the AG should not have to serve at the pleasure of the governor,
and the governor should not have the right to fire the AG for
not being in accordance with the governor's w shes. He stated
his belief that the AG should be the people' s | awer.

8:10: 28 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 19, 2007



CHAIR LYNN said there had been a reconmendation to consult
previ ous attorneys general, and he noted that there were two
present to testify today.

8:11:17 AM

CHARLES E. COLE, Attorney at Law, related that he served as
attorney general wunder fornmer Governor Walter J. Hickel, from
Septenber 1990 to January 1994. He enphasi zed the inportance of
the state's having the nost qualified person serving as its
attorney general. He stated that the attorney general of Al aska
has "al nost constitutional powers" derived from the conmon | aw,
represents the state as a plaintiff and defendant in civil
actions, and is in charge of essentially all felony crimnal
prosecutions throughout the state. Furthernore, the attorney
general appoints not only nenbers of the Departnent of Law, but
al so the district attorneys throughout the state. M. Cole said
he thinks the attorney general "rises to a |level
substantially higher than those of ... conm ssioners.”

MR. COLE, in regard to the debate between an appointed attorney
general versus one elected by the people of the state, said,

"It's not an easy decision; | think I conme down slightly in
favor of the appointed attorney general.” M. Cole said there
are sonme advantages to having an elected AG First, it is a
"furtherance of the denobcratic process.” Second, the AG as an
elected officer is essentially free from control from the
executive branch. That said, he pointed out the disadvantages
of the system of electing attorneys general. First, he said,

the nost qualified person for the position of attorney general
may not want to run for elective office. The el ected AG woul d
be I ooking for political canpaign contributions, and where those

canpaign dollars cone from could cause conflicts. Next, he
posited, if an elected attorney general does not do well, it is
nore difficult to replace himher. Oten, he noted, an elected

AG has aspirations for a higher elected political office and
"maybe the decisions are less than straight down the line for

what they would otherwi se be absent that consideration.” Also,
M. Cole said it wuld not "further good representative
government” if an attorney general decided to nmke a choice
counter to that of the governor. Finally, M. Cole warned that

there is a tendency for elected attorneys general to be naking
deci si ons based on political interest.

8:17: 04 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 19, 2007



MR. COLE then tal ked about the appointnent of attorneys general,

which he said can also be problemtic. He said whether the
system works depends largely on the governor's decision
regardi ng who to appoint. He stated, "I took the view that the
attorney general was the attorney for the people of this state
and not ... the lawer for the governor." He said it is a
probl em when the governor tells the AG what to do, and it takes
a great deal of integrity on the part of both parties "in
di scharge of the office of the attorney.”" He offered an exanple
of conflict. He stated that the governor nust respect the AG in

matters of law, while the AG nust respect the governor's
political philosophy.

8:22:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Ceneral Cole about the interplay
between the duties and potential conflict of the Ofice of the
Attorney Ceneral and the Al aska Executive Branch Ethics Act.

CHAIR LYNN interjected that he does not want the actions of
previ ous attorneys general brought into the discussion.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cited AS 39.52.160(a) and its
correspondi ng paragraph (2) which read as foll ows:

(a) A public officer may not represent, advise
or assist a person in any matter pending before the
admnistrative unit that the officer serves, if the
representation, advice, or assistance is

(2) without conpensation, but rendered to benefit
a personal or financial interest of the public
of ficer.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Cole, "Wuld this provide
some contour ... to the I|imts of +the attorney general's
potential conflict if the governor wanted the AG to do sonething
that was contrary to the public interest but designed solely to
benefit the governor?"

8:25:12 AM

MR COLE said in the interest of fairness, he would want to
study that statute before remarking on it, rather than giving an
of f-the-cuff opinion.

8:25:34 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 19, 2007



REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL noted a couple issues that mnade him
support an appointed AG over an elected one: t he canpaign
contributions and the promses that would be made along the
canpaign trail. He surmised that the elected AG would be
framng public policy in an arena where he/she m ght be asked to
adj udicate "contrary to those public policies." He asked M.

Col e to respond.

MR. COLE said he hopes any candidate for elected AG would have
the good sense to not neke any policy conmmtnents. He said
Alaska is a small state, and an AG nmay experience problens with
conflicts because he/she has dealt with so many people and
conpanies in the state over the course of tine. He added, "I
don't know which side that cones down on - elective or
appoi ntive."

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he is sonmewhat synpathetic toward
the idea of an elected AG having proposed legislation to that
ef fect sonme years ago. He asked M. Cole if he thinks having a
elected AG would result in a canpaign of qualifications and
personal ity rather than that of public policy.

MR. COLE said he thinks that would be Ilikely. An AG could be
el ected for being well known throughout the state, rather than
on his/her ability to serve as AG He said that's a problem

| f appointed, he surmsed there would be a greater |ikelihood
that the AG would be well-qualified to serve that post. He
added, "And that is not sinply on the basis of legal ability and
| egal skills, but on the basis of making sound ... policy ... or

political decisions. The person who serves in that position ...
should be not only a well qualified |awer to mnmake the final

decision regarding matters of ... law affecting the state, but
also ... [to] have a sense of political decisions, as well."
8:29:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cited AS 39.52.120(a)(3), which read:

(3) use state tinme, property, equipnent, or other
facilities to benefit personal or financial interests;

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG then cited AS 39.52.120(a)(5), which
read:

(5) attenmpt to benefit a personal or financial
interest through coercion of a subordinate or require

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 19, 2007



another public officer to perform services for the
private benefit of the public officer at any tine; or

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Cole if he sees either of
t hose provisions providing any protection for an AG who m ght be
asked by the governor to perform an inproper service or course
of action.

8:31: 03 AM
MR. COLE answered yes. He continued:

That relationship between the attorney general and the
governor in an appointive nethod just has to be better
than that. ... | think they just have to respect each
other's prerogatives and powers. ... \Wien the
attorney general says, "Look, | nean we just can't do
it and I can't do it in good faith," the governor has
to say, "I accept that," and respect the attorney
general ' s deci si on.

MR, COLE said problenms with appointed attorneys general are
often focused upon by people other than the governor, for
exanpl e, conm ssi oners. The governor has to back up the AG in
that relationship, because it is inportant that others in the
executive branch don't get the idea that because they appointed
the attorney general, they can tell hinmher what to do.
Furthernore, he said, the AG has to be strong enough to stand up
for his/her decisions.

8:33: 03 AM

MR COLE, in response to a question from Representative
Gruenberg, said it is easy to say no in private practice, but
not as easy for an AG

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ained he was trying to point out
that nost private practice attorneys have had the experience
occur in which the client may not be following the correct | egal
or ethical procedure.

MR COLE said that's true.

CHAIR LYNN commented that |egislators also have situations when
t hey nust uphold ethics and refuse to do sonet hing.

8:35:14 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 19, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked M. Cole to confirm if it is the
responsibility of the attorney general to assign attorneys to

cases that the state will be litigating.
MR COLE said the answer to that is "sonmewhat yes." He
expl ai ned:

...We always had sone problens ... where sone

depart nment comm ssioners  get assi st ant attorneys
general assigned to them and then if you try to take
that ... assistant attorney general over to work on
major litigation, they say, "Wll, we're paying for
that assistant attorney general and we don't want him
goi ng. "

| always took the position: "I'm sorry about that."
| wanted to select the nobst qualified lawers in the
entire departnment to work on cases of paranmount

inportance to the state, and ... | know sone of the
comm ssioners didn't like it - and with good reason
- because of the financial relationship. But |

just thought it's too inportant to the state not to
have our first tier team working on particular matters
of litigation.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked if it would be the prerogative of the
AG to handle the case if he/she so chose, which would nmean that
an elected attorney general could select a high profile case to
cover in the best interest of the state, but also in his/her
best interest toward getting reel ected.

MR COLE said that could easily be done; however, if the
attorney general l|oses the case, it mght not be good for
hi s/ her reel ection canpai gn.

8:38: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he never doubted that during M.
Cole's term as attorney general, he acted with the state's best
interested at heart. He said if he could be assured that every
appoi nted AG would be |ike Attorney Ceneral Cole, he would not
be proposing HIR 6. However, he said M. Cole has nade the
poi nt that any [appointed] attorney general has sone loyalty to
the governor, and he restated that the AG should be the people's
top | awyer.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 19, 2007



8:40: 46 AM

MR. COLE responded with an anecdote about an elected AG in
California who responded to a directive given by Governor Arnold

Schwar zenegger by saying, "You forget, governor, |I'm elected by
the people and don't take orders fromyou." He stated, "It just
sort of highlighted ... the ... issues that we have here in the
appointive attorney general situation.” He reenphasized that in
order for the nmethod of appointing an AG to work, both he/she
and the governor nust have integrity. He said some may call
that risky, but on the other hand, the people get to elect their
gover nor and rely on hi n1 her to "di schar ge t hose
responsibilities with full integrity.”

8:43:19 AM

REPRESENTATIVE ROSES remarked that currently there 1is a
di scussion going on regarding the state's oil, and he said he
believes the state still needs a strong executive branch. He

said the nmethod of electing an AG may result in the state's
having a charmng attorney general with little experience as an
attorney. He said he has concern about "politicizing a position
of that magnitude." Regarding the idea of the attorney genera
running on a slate with the governor and |ieutenant governor, he
said if that AG should quit, then "you're back to having
sonmebody appointed again." He warned that as soon as the
process becones political, the state will have entered into an
"area of dynamc over which a |lot of people have no control."
He echoed the previous remark that there are a | ot of people who
woul d nake fabulous attorneys general but would never run for
political office.

8:48: 07 AM
BRUCE BOTHELO, Mayor, City & Bureau of Juneau, specified that he

is testifying as a private citizen who served as attorney
general from January 1994, through Decenber 2002 - not as nayor

of Juneau. He noted that he served as M. Cole' s deputy
attorney general, and he expressed appreciation for M. Cole's
abilities while in office. Mayor Bothelo said he subscribes

fully to virtually every statenent that M. Cole made, which he
said enphasizes that the issue is not clear-cut one way or
anot her. He spoke of the tension involved in an AGs telling
t he governor when he/she will not back down on an issue.

MAYOR BOTHELO stated that the fundanental issue of whether to
elect the AGor not is related to ones view about the all ocation

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 19, 2007



of power within the executive branch. General |y speaking, he
said, those who support the election of the AG are those who
hold the view that the executive power is too concentrated "in
the governor," that the AG is not a position to exercise
i ndependent judgnents on legal matters that affect the executive
branch, and that the position should be one which serves as a

check on the power of the governor. He stated that those who
support the view that an appointed AG nakes nore sense - as
reflected in the aforenentioned constitutional debate - want to
di sperse the decisions on policy, including legal policy, to

have an AG who is the voice of the people of the state.

MR. BOTHELO said nost states elect their attorneys general; five
states have their governors nmake the appointnent; the state of
Mai ne has the |egislature nmake the appointnent; and the state of

Tennessee has its suprene court select the AG Many of the
states that have elected officers do so out of concern for not
concentrating power and in order to have accountability. He

offered sonme historical facts in the fornulation of the post of
attorney general in various states.

8:53: 36 AM

MAYOR BOTHELO noted that the five states that have their
governors appoint attorneys general - including Alaska - are
also states with recent constitutional reforns. He listed the

common denom nators anong attorneys general in all states, as
fol | ows: to act as chief legal officer of the state; to be in
control of litigation involving the state; to have the power of
public advocacy; to have the power of issuing opinions to state
agencies; and to be involved in |legislative advocacy and
drafting. He said the latter is a key function in Al aska. He
related that nost states' attorneys general also have sone
crimnal law jurisdiction and serve as a function of consuner
protection. He stated that Al aska and Del aware are the only two
states in which crimnal jurisdiction is vested in the attorney

general both at the trial and appellate level. He said Del aware
is the only other state in which the AG appoints district
at t or neys. He said in sone respects, the power of the AG in

Al aska is much greater than in nost other states.

8:55: 57 AM

MAYOR BOTHELO said there are reasons that speak in favor of an
el ected attorney general, including: the sense of nore direct

accountability to the people; the ability to stand up to the
governor; and the ability to canpaign on legal policies that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- April 19, 2007



otherwise wouldn't generally cone up in the course of a
gubernatorial race. Mayor Bothelo said those canpaign issues
m ght i ncl ude: consuner protection, consuner fraud, and
protection of senior citizens and children.

MR. BOTHELO said there are drawbacks to having an elected AG
which constitute the reason he has concluded that Alaska's
current system of having a governor-appointed AGis better. For
exanple, he talked about the battle between attorneys general
and governors of other states. Furthernore, on a practical
note, M. Bothelo said there would be a need to restructure how
| egal services are rendered. In nost states that have an
el ected AG the governor has his/her own |egal council and state
agencies prefer to have their own in-house council. He said the
public outreach that is done can be called public relations, and
the staff involved would be concerned about "the politics of the
position.”™ The appointed AG does not spend a lot of tinme on the
road canpai gning, whereas the elected AG has the need to reach
out to constituents across the state.

9:01: 03 AM

MAYOR BOTHELO said he thinks that with very few exceptions,
t hose attorneys general who have been appointed by the governors
of Al aska have served the state well, and nost would not have
t hought to run for public office.

9:01: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked Mayor Bothelo if he agrees wth
the mjority of del egates to the Alaska Constitutional
Convention that the crux of the issue is that having an el ected
AG along with an el ected governor would be a "watering down" [of
the adm ni stration].

9:02: 07 AM

MAYCOR BOTHELO r esponded:

The answer is yes. Stripped of all others, it is
sinply whether it'll be two independent voices within
t he executive branch det er m ni ng policy; one
theoretically Iimted to legal policy and the other to
nore general policy. Unfortunately there's a great
over |l ap.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- April 19, 2007



MAYOR BOTHELO noted that wthin the National Association of
Attorneys General, it is a standing joke that AG really stands
for "aspiring governor." He said there is sonme truth to that,
and he |isted sone exanpl es.

9: 04: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN posited that in the case of an appointed
AG his/her actions reflect wupon the governor who nade the
appoi nt ment .

MAYOR BOTHELO concurr ed.
9:04: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL commented that there has been a lot of
attention paid to ethics this year, and, as a result, there has
been a great desire to be transparent - to open closed doors in
politics.

9:05:46 AM

MAYOR BOTHELO, in response to a question from Representative
Doll, said the ability of an AG to do public outreach has sone
advant ages, but he said he is not sure it would have advantages
with respect to the issue of transparency in ethics. He stated
that he thinks the |legislative body has the challenge of
wei ghing issues of privacy, the public's right to know, and
hol di ng public officials to high standards.

9:07: 01 AM

MAYOR BOTHELO, in response to Representative Guenberg, I|isted
former attorneys general who becane senators or judges.

9:09: 21 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nentioned the names of sone attorneys

general in Al aska who had previously or subsequently held
el ective offices.

9:10: 38 AM
MAYOR BOTHELO, in response to Representative G uenberg, related
that the experience of elective office hopefully creates a

political antenna to use in appointed office. He said nost
governors come to rely on their attorneys general for not only

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 19, 2007



| egal judgment, but also political judgnent, because frequently
t hey overl ap. He stated that there are sone governors who cone
into office not fully appreciating the inportance of that
particul ar relationship. He suggested the sane nay be true for
attorneys general. That appreciation is sonetinmes devel oped
over tinme.

9:13:11 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked Mayor Bothelo whether or not he thinks an
elected AG should be of the sane political party as the
gover nor.

MAYOR BOTHELO answered that should largely be irrel evant. He
cont i nued:

If the primary purpose is to be a check on the
authority of the governor, | think the political
affiliation itself probably would be of |esser inport.
Qoviously there is the risk that if they are different
parties or have different political views that there
could be greater conflict. But | would also say,
again, that there are 43 states that are operating on
the basis of an independent, elected attorney general,
and while there are substantial nunbers of cases that

highlight ... both real conflicts that sonetinmes arise
and the mschief that can happen, for the nost part
those relationships tend to work out. And that's

because one relies on the <corps of professionals

within the departnents - whether they're called |aw or

justice - that are serving on a day-to-day basis the
agenci es of people in the states.

9:14: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked Mayor Bothelo if he would have
beconme an attorney general if he had had to run for the office.

MAYCR BOTHELO answer ed no.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said he is wondering what kind of effect
[swtching to an elected AG would have on "getting quality
peopl e who just may not be statew de candi date material ."

MAYOR BOTHELO reiterated that he thinks nost of Alaska's

attorneys general have been outstanding |awers and hunman
bei ngs, but few would have run for office. Several of them

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 19, 2007



woul d have recognized that they are not people who canpaign
wel l; they were chosen for their abilities as attorneys general.
In response to Chair Lynn, he remarked that serving as AG had
its frustrating nonments, but was probably the npbst satisfying
career experience in his life.

9:18: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that a state enployee could not
run for political office, thus Mayor Bothel o, having been deputy
attorney general would not have been able to run for AG if the
el ective system had been in pl ace.

MAYOR BOTHELO clarified Representative Guenberg's renmark by
explaining that a state worker nmay not work for partisan
political office, but may run for nonpartisan office.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that Mayor Bothelo had served as
AG under both Republican and Denocrat governors. Under the
Cannons of Ethics, he relayed, a person cannot represent both
sides in a litigation, nor can he/she represent one side and

then subsequently shift. He indicated that an AG who serves
under one governor and then another nmay be placed in that
si tuation. He asked, "How do you resolve that ethica

situation?"
9:21: 15 AM

MAYOR BOTHELO said this situation does not pose an ethical
dil emma, because the client - the State of Alaska - did not
change. The AGs job is to give the best advice possible and to
i npl enent the governor's directives to the extent that they are
consistent with the [|aw He said on nore than one occasion

both governors for whom he worked nade calls with which he
di sagreed, but which were legally defensible. He continued:

There are tines when the line could be crossed, and

then | think the situation is: you've got to be
prepared to tender your resignation. And fornmer
attorneys general in the state have done that. And |

think it's reflected in part by the fact that there
are relatively few attorneys general who have served
full terns with the governors who appoi nted them

9:23: 22 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- April 19, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered a |list of the skills and duties
of an AG and he asked Mayor Bothelo to rank those skills and
duties in order of inportance for elected attorneys general and
then for appointed attorneys general.

9:26: 13 AM

MAYOR BOTHELO sai d attorneys general share in comon nost of the
sane objectives. He stated that it is in the interest of both
the elected and appointed AG to ensure the office is well-run
and that services are being provided efficiently and
ef fectively. He stated, "My sense would be that one of the
areas of distinction is the degree to which work is done behind
the scenes, as opposed to a public setting in the need to create
an aura of public prom nence."

MAYOR BOTHELO said successful attorneys general - whether
el ected or appointed - wusually achieve nost of that success in
their works within the executive branch. He indicated that a

| arge portion of his and M. Cole's tinme as attorneys general
was devoted to issues between state departnents and the
executive branch related to oil and gas policy.

MAYOR BOTHELO renarked that the attorneys general he has known
i nvari ably cannot resist the tenptation to argue a case in front
of the United States Suprenme Court, should the opportunity

arise. He stated, "I think ... attorneys general in Al aska have
had that opportunity several tines, and | think our deference
has been to making sure we had the best etiquette in front of
the court to make the case. ... If you're the attorney genera
and you've argued the case, of course the risk again is the
out cone, but I used that as ... maybe an anecdot al
differentiation. ... Again, there have been some great
advocates."

9:30:41 AM

MAYOR BOTHELO conti nued:

But | also know that in one situation, a close friend
of mne ... who was an AG devoted literally nonths to
preparation, to the exclusion of alnost anything else
that was going on in his departnent. And that, of
course, is the kind of devotion one expects for a case
in front of the [US.] Supreme Court, but it 1is
certainly, | think, a conflict in ternms of the
di scharge of other responsibilities. Again, that's

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 19, 2007



just a small fraction of what happens in the norma
course, but ... | think it's illustrative of what I
think would be a sonewhat different approach by
el ected as opposed to appointed attorneys general.

9:31: 36 AM

MAYOR BOTHELO, in response to a question from Representative
Coghill, said for the nost part, attorneys general tend to align
on the side of the state - defending state prerogatives in
regul ati ng gam ng. He said, "Habeas corpus was an area that
tended to break down - not so much ... [in regard to whether the
AG is] elected versus appointed, but over whether one was
Republican or Denocrat." He stated, "Generally speaking, the
Nat i onal Association of Attorneys General has been very good in
trying to keep a bi-partisan aura about it and focusing on the
prerogatives of the attorney general."

9:34: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHI LL explained that he is interested in the
states' rights issue because he thinks the federal governnent is

growi ng and ever nore powerful. He added, "So, if | thought for
a nonent that an elected attorney general would give us a little
nmore clout, I'd do it in a heart beat." He asked a question

regardi ng the independence of an AG and a governor related to
Indian law i n Al aska. He conti nued:

Because | think that it mght have the benefit of
bringing nore people to the debate. On the other
hand, it mght divide the executive branch so nuch
that you really wuld not be on their forward
novenent . W're so unique in all the rest of the
United States in that regard that it would be -- ny
mnd just kind of breaks down when | start thinking
about what could conme of that. But | know that you' ve
been involved in it. So, from your perspective, do
you think it's a cleaner way of taking it as a state
policy generally, or do you think that the 1issue
shoul d be broken up nore as a political |aw decision?

9:35: 52 AM

MAYOR BOTHELO responded, "This is one that there's no real
predictor. You' ve basically got a scenario where you could have
a governor taking ... position A and the attorney general
taking position B, in an elected situation, or vice a versa.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- April 19, 2007



You nay be satisfied with position A or position B. You may
have a situation where both accept position A or both accept
position B, and you've got to decide. What you are guaranteed
in our system is it'll be either A or B, but it won't be a
situation where they will be divided."

9:37:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG recalled that one of the sponsor's
concerns is that an appointed AG may feel beholden to the
governor, whereas an elected AG would be nore independent. He
asked Mayor Bothelo for his opinion.

9:38: 01 AM

MAYOR BOTHELO responded that he thinks that is a risk; however

the integrity of both the governor and the AGis what is counted
upon to be able to nmake and uphold deci sions. He offered an
anecdot e. He said the approach is to call things as they are

and he said he thinks for the nobst part, that is what 1is
happening in all the departnents. Any governor is well-served
by that approach, he said. He related his hope that that sane
standard woul d apply with an el ected AG

9:40: 23 AM
CHAI R LYNN cl osed public testinony.
9:40: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL noved to adopt Anendnent 1, |abeled 25-
LS0420\ A. 3, Bullard, 4/17/07, which read as foll ows:

Page 2, line 5:
Delete "There shall be no limit on the terns of
t he attorney general ."

Page 2, following line 5:
| nsert a new subsection to read:

"(b) No person who has been elected attorney
general for two full successive terns shall be again
eligible to hold that office until one full term has
i ntervened. "

Rel etter the foll ow ng subsection accordingly.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL objected for discussion purposes.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- April 19, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE DCOLL expl ai ned that Anendnent 1 sinply proposes a
termof office.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL indicated that in Al aska's past, people

were reluctant to turn away a good attorney general. He said
"Before I'mwlling to vote for this, | think I would want to
review sonme of that history." He maintained his objection to
Amendnent 1.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that there are not that many
lawers in Alaska, and not many are willing to run for public
office; therefore, he said he is reluctant to support Anmendnent
1.

9:44: 32 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Doll and Lynn voted
in favor of Anmendnment 1. Representati ves G uenberg, Coghill
Johansen, and Johnson voted against it. Therefore, Anmendnent 1
failed by a vote of 2-4.

9:45: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noved to adopt Anmendnent 2, |abeled 25-
LS0420\ A. 2, Bullard, 4/13/07, which read as foll ows:

Page 1, line 14, follow ng "be":
Del ete "el ect ed"
| nsert "nom nat ed"

Page 1, line 15, following "law':
Delete "by the qualified voters of the State at
the sane tinme and for the sane termas the governor"”

Insert "for other elective offices. In the
general election, the votes cast for a candidate for
governor shall be considered as cast also for the

candidate for attorney general running jointly wth
the candidates for governor and |ieutenant governor.
The candi date whose nanme appears on the ballot wth
that of the successful candidate for governor shall be
el ected attorney general”

Page 2, line 7, followi ng "el ected":
Insert "in the manner provided by |aw'

9: 45: 42 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 19, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL objected for discussion purposes.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON expl ai ned that Anendnent 2 proposes that
the attorney general be of the sane party as the governor and
I i eut enant governor and that those three offices run on a slate.

9:46: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL stated, "If the assertion is we want an
i ndependent attorney general, then it should be, in fact,
i ndependent." He nmintained his objection.

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL concurred with Representative Coghill. She
stated her belief that "it ... should be nonpartisan.™

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i ndicated that his opinion mrrors that
of Representative Coghill.

9:47:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON echoed Representative Roses' previous
comments regarding oil and gas issues and said he thinks there

needs to be an "alignnent” in order to face huge conpani es. | f
that alignnent is not there, he said, he cannot support HIR 6.
If Amendnment 2 is not adopted, he said, he wll oppose the

proposed | egi sl ati on.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said, "Either you have an independent
attorney general, or you have a very strong governor, and under
this condition | will so oppose the anmendnent."”

CHAIR LYNN said if he were governor, he would want an AG who, if
not in lock-step with his beliefs, at least was in his "sane
phi | osophi cal ball park." He stated that he would support
Amendnent 2.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON wi t hdrew Anendnent 2. He expl ai ned that
he thinks that is the best nove at this point, because he would
rather have "a straight up and down vote" on the proposed
legislation "without this to cloud it." He clarified that he
does not support the election of the attorney general.

9:49: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL reiterated that there is nerit to electing
the AG but that there should be term limts. She said she

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 19, 2007



would not Ilike to see the Ilegislation voted down wthout
consideration of those limts. Regarding the issue of whether
or not the best qualified candidate is "the best qualified to
win," she said "this is no exception" [to canpaigning for any
ot her public office]. She said she would like to see the people
of Al aska vote on HIR 6, but not wthout termlimts.

9:50: 51 AM

CHAIR LYNN said he would vote to nove HIR 6 to the House
Judiciary Standing Conmittee - the next commttee of referral.

9:51: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL appealed to fellow conmttee nenbers to
hold the resolution, because he said he thinks there is nuch
di scussion yet to be had.

9:52:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to table HIR 6.

CHAI R LYNN stated that he would hold HIR 6.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL stated, "I'lIl withdraw ny notion, then."
9:53:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggest ed rel at ed t opi cs for
| egi sl ati on.

9:53: 30 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that HIR 6 was heard and hel d.

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
9:54: 00 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 19, 2007



